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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
JAMES O. ALSTON, DRAFT: ELS: 2008.10.21
Plaintiff, Civil Action No.
v,
HAWTHORNE PAINT CO., INC,, JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
Defendant.
COMPLAINT

Plaintiff James Alston (“Alston”), by the undersigned attorneys, makes the following
averments:

1. This is a civil action brought pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment and
Reemployment Rights Act of 1994, 38 U.S.C. §§ 4301 - 4333 (“USERRA”).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 38
U.S.C. § 4323(b).

3. Venue is proper in this district under 38 U.S.C. § 4323(c)(2) because defendant
Hawthorne Paint Co., Inc., (“Hawthorne Paint”) maintains a place of business in this district.
Additionally, venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because a substantial part of the events

giving rise to this action occurred in this district.
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PARTIES
4, Alston resides in Patterson, New Jersey, which is within the jurisdiction of
this Court.
5. Hawthorne Paint maintains a place of business at 66 Fifth Avenue, Hawthorne,

New Jersey, 07056, which is within the jurisdiction of this Court.
CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

6. Alston was hired by Hawthorne Paint in 1979 as a shipper/receiver. In the mid-
1980s, Alston was promoted to a supervisory position. For nearly thirty years, from 1979 until
his discharge from employment in January 2007, Alston worked without incident or any
disciplinary action.

7. ‘Mun"ay Greene (“Greene”) is the Owner and President of Hawthorne Paint.

8. Alston is a reservist in the Army National Guard, and has continuously been a
reservist since 1979.

9. On June 2, 2004, Alston received orders from the Army to report to active duty to
serve in Operation Iraqi Freedom. Pursuant to this order, Alston served on active duty from June
6, 2004 to June 30, 2006.

10.  Alston provided Hawthorne with timely notice of his orders to report to active
duty.

11.  While Alston was on active duty, Hawthorne Paint employee Stephen King
(“King”) assumed Alston’s duties at Hawthomne Paint.

12.  Upon his discharge from active duty, Alston immediately contacted Greene to

inform him that he was available to return to work at Hawthorne Paint. Alston also told Greene
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that he would have medical appointments three to four days per week, from July 2006 through
December 2006, relating to injuries that Alston suffered as the result of an improvised explosive
device attack in Irag. Greene told Alston that he should return to work when he was completed
with his medical appointments. Alston agreed.

13. On January 8, 2007, Alston informed Greene that he had completed his medical
appointments and was ready to return to work at Hawthorne Paint. Alston’s first day of
reemployment with Hawthorne Paint was on January 9, 2007.

14.  OnJanuary 11, 2007, as Alston was making batches of paint with another
employee in Hawthorne Paint’s facility, Greene approached Alston and inexplicably began to yell
at him about what he was doing. Immediately after this incident, Alston asked Greene whether
he still had his job. Greene responded that Alston’s job was “taken” and that things were “not
the same” at Hawthorne Paint, or words to that effect.

15.  OnJanuary 18, 2007, Greene claimed that a Hawthorne Paint employee had stolen
thirty (30) gallons of paint. However, after conferring with another Hawthorne Paint employee,
Alston was able to locate the paint and show Greene that Greene was mistaken.

16.  OnJanuary 19, 2007, Greene accused Alston and King of stealing certain paint
from Hawthorne Paint. Both Greene and King denied that they had stolen paint. Alston was
immediately terminated by Greene for allegedly stealing paint. King, however, was not
terminated or otherwise disciplined for the alleged theft.

17.  Upon being terminated, Alston informed Greene that he would file a complaint
with the government regarding the termination. Greene responded that he “did not care,” that

Greene owned Hawthorne Paint, and that the government could pay Alston’s salary.
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18.  Hawthorne Paint’s decision to terminate Alston was motivated by Alston’s
military service and was therefore in violation of USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4311(c)(1).

19.  Hawthome Paint terminated Alston within one year of the date of his
reemployment without cause, in violation of USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4316(c)(1).

20.  Alston has suffered a substantial loss of earnings and other benefits of
employment as a result of Hawthorne Paint’s violations of USERRA in an amount and of a
nature to be proven at trial.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Alston prays that the Court enter judgment against Hawthorne Paint, its
officers, agents, employees, successors, and all persons in active concert or participation with it,
as follows:

21.  Declare that Hawthorne Paint’s decision to terminate Alston was motivated by
Alston’s military service and was therefore in violation of USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4311,

22.  Declare that Hawthorne Paint terminated Alston within one year of the date of his
reemployment without cause, in violation of USERRA, 38 U.S.C. § 4316;

23.  Require that Hawthorne Paint fully comply with the provisions of USERRA by
paying Alston all amounts due to him for loss of wages and benefits caused by Hawthorne
Paint’s violations of USERRA;

24.  Offer to reinstate Alston to his supervisory position upon his return from his
current deployment;

25.  Enjoin Hawthorne Paint from taking any action against Alston that fails to comply

with the provisions of USERRA;
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26. Award Alston prejudgment interest in the amount of lost wages and other
benefits found due; and
27 Grant such other and further relief as may be just and proper, together with the
costs and disbursements of this lawsuit,
JURY DEMAND
Alston hereby demands a trial by jury of all issues so triable pursuant to USERRA, 38

U.S.C. § 4323(d)(1)(c)

GRACE CHUNG BECKER
Acting Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

q; ) 9 fal @_‘-{0:\' ;
M. GADZICHOWSKI (W1 Bar No.1014294)
Ch f
mployment Litigation Section
Q’LLS Qgﬂ;a/
}1\?5 ANIS (DC Bar No. 453493,
JBar No. 035671995)

eputy Section Chief

T Bl
BRIAN G. McENTIRE (VA Bar No. 48552)
Senior Trial Attorney
Employment Litigation Section, PHB
Civil Rights Division
United States Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Room 4908
Washington, DC 20530
(202) 305-1470
(202) 514-1005 (fax)
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RALPH J. MARRA, JR.
Acting United States Attorney

By: _JUpnd— f .o 798
SUSAN J. STEELE
Assistant U.S. Attorney
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